
AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 APRIL 2018

A MEETING of the AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL 

CHAMBER, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS on THURSDAY, 19 

APRIL 2018 at 10.00 am

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

12 April 2018

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

4. Minute. (Pages 3 - 12) 5 mins

Minute of Meeting of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee held on 19 March 
2018 to be approved and signed by the Chairman. (Copy attached.)

5. Community Access to Schools 30 mins

Briefing by Cleaning and Facilities Manager and School Estates Officer. 
6. Home Schooling Update 15 mins

Update by Service Director: Children & Young People on legislative or 
guidance changes to home schooling requirements from the previous 
Scrutiny review carried out in February 2017. 

7. Any Other Audit Items Previously Circulated. 

8. Any Other Audit Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent. 

Public Document Pack



NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors S. Bell (Chairman), H. Anderson, K. Chapman, 
J. A. Fullarton, S. Hamilton (Vice-Chairman), N. Richards, H. Scott, R. Tatler and E. Thornton-Nicol

Please direct any enquiries to Judith Turnbull   Tel No. 01835 826556
Email: judith.turnbull@scotborders.gov.uk



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTE of Meeting of the AUDIT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held in Council 
Chamber, Council Headquarters, Newtown 
St Boswells on Monday, 19 March 2018 at 
10.15 am

Present:- Councillors S Bell (Chairman), H Anderson, J Fullarton, S Hamilton, 
N Richards, H Scott, R Tatler, E Thornton-Nicol and Mr M Middlemiss 

In Attendance:- Chief Financial Officer, Chief Officer Audit and Risk, Chief Social Work Officer  
Democratic Services Officer (J Turnbull). 
Ms G Woolman, Mr A Haseeb and Mr G Samson – Audit Scotland.  

1. MINUTE. 
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of 15 February 2018.     

DECISION
APPROVED for signature by the Chairman.  

2. MATTERS ARISING 
With reference to paragraph 3 of the Minute of 15 February 2018, Ms Stacey advised that 
prior to this meeting during the Informal Session, as agreed at the Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting of 15 January 2018, Members had carried out a Self-Assessment 
using the Local Government Finance Overview Scrutiny Tool for Councillors.  The 
Informal Session had highlighted areas where further information was required, which 
would be addressed through future development sessions and briefings.  A note of the 
Self-Assessment was attached as Appendix A to this minute. 

DECISION
NOTED 
(a) Completion of the Local Government Finance Overview Scrutiny Toolkit 

Self-Assessment; and
(b) A note of the Scrutiny Toolkit Local Government Finance Overview Self-

Assessment is attached as Appendix A to the minute. 

3. RISK MANAGEMENT IN SERVICES 
3.1 The Chairman welcomed Mr Murray Leys, Chief Social Work Officer, to the meeting.  Mr 

Leys was in attendance to give a presentation on the strategic risks affecting the social 
care service and the internal controls and governance in place to manage and mitigate 
those risks.  Mr Leys began by advising that the Social Work service cared for the most 
vulnerable people in the community.  His role, as Chief Social Work Officer, was to own 
strategic risks and ensure that there was an understanding of what the risks were and 
how these could be alleviated to achieve outcomes.  He highlighted the Corporate Risk 
Register which detailed that failure to protect adults and young people at risk might result 
in harm to them, and reputational damage to the Council and Integration Joint Board.    
He explained that there were also Risk Registers in place for: Adult Protection Unit, 
Emergency Duty Team, Criminal Justice/Community Justice, Safer Communities, Mental 
Health, and Learning Disability Service.   Mr Leys referred to the social care landscape, 
the demographics of which had seen a significant increase in the number of people 
requiring care, with a reduction in the number of people delivering care.   He discussed 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



the risks associated with funding pressures, difficulty recruiting and retaining experienced 
social workers, General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR), challenges of providing 
care in a rural area, and the integration of health and social care.  Mr Leys then referred to 
the risk associated with Strategic Commissioning and explained that as well as SB Cares, 
who provided 74% of care provision in the Scottish Borders, there were other external 
homecare providers, all of which had to be contract managed by the Council.

3.2 In terms of ongoing improvements and transformation of the service, Mr Leys was 
investigating new ways of working, for example, mobile working whereby services could 
be accessed through the Council’s website, self-assessment, telehealth, telecare and 
medication carousels.   Future strategies would include Personal Care for Under 65s, 
Dementia, and Physical Disabilities.

3.3 In response to questions, Mr Leys advised that he could apply to the Court for 
guardianship powers to support adults and young people at risk.   With regard to the 
amalgamation of Bordercare and East Lothian’s Emergency Duty Teams, Mr Leys 
explained that the existing Bordercare IT system was out of date and replacement would 
have had a significant cost implication, the new contract had mitigated this risk.  Mr Leys 
added that scripts had been put in place for staff to ensure they asked appropriate 
questions and he was confident that the new level of service would have an acceptable 
risk.  With regard to the risk associated with recruitment and retention of staff, Mr Leys 
acknowledged that there was a need for more carers and that vacancies often had to be 
filled by agency workers.    The Council worked closely with schools and Queen Margaret 
University to encourage young people to join the profession.  There was also ongoing 
dialogue with care providers regarding the increased funding they received being utilised 
for staffing and not organisational costs.   The Committee then asked for clarification on 
special measures for care homes. Mr Leys advised that when this happened there was a 
multi-agency group of professionals involved. Admissions were stopped and adult 
protection procedures were instigated.  The Committee then discussed dementia care and 
Mr Leys clarified that presently, throughout the Scottish Borders, there was a shortage of 
residential beds with only three vacancies.  By 2022 there would be additional specialist 
dementia beds, provided by the public and private sector, which he considered would 
meet demand.  The Chairman thanked Mr Leys for his attendance and informative 
presentation. 

 
DECISION 
NOTED the presentation. 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT WORK TO FEBRUARY 2018 
4.1 With reference to paragraph 7 of the Minute of 15 January 2018, there had been 

circulated copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk providing details of the 
recent work carried out by Internal Audit and the recommended audit actions agreed by 
Management to improve internal controls and governance arrangements.   The work 
Internal Audit had carried out during the period 23 December 2017 to 23 February 2018 
was detailed in the report attached to the Agenda.  During this period a total of five Final 
Internal Audit reports were issued. There were four recommendations made relating to 
two of the reports which had been accepted by Management for implementation. An 
Executive Summary of the final Internal Audit reports issued, including audit objective, 
findings, good practice, recommendations (where appropriate) and the Chief Officer Audit 
and Risk’s independent and objective opinion on the adequacy of the control environment 
and governance arrangements within each audit area, was included in Appendix 1 to the 
report.  The SBC Internal Audit function conformed to the professional standards as set 
out in Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) effective 1 April 2013 including the 
production of the report to communicate the results of the reviews.

4.2 Ms Stacey highlighted the Internal Audit Assurance Reports detailed in the Appendix to 
the report.  She advised that the recommendations in respect of Petty Cash and 
Emergency Funding improvement actions were progressing.   The recommendations 

Page 4



regarding governance arrangements for CGI were noted and agreed by the Committee.     
In response to questions, Mr Robertson clarified the arrangements in place for emergency 
financial support and confirmed that the Finance Business Continuity Plan would be 
updated.  With regard to ICT’s business continuity, corporate and operational vulnerability, 
he advised that CGI had carried out a review following the recent difficulties experienced 
with ICT’s remote working functionality.  CGI had advised that they were confident that 
there would be no further remote accessibility issues.  He further advised that the Head of 
ICT was an interim post and recruitment to the permanent, internal post was ongoing.   He 
went on to explain that CGI was the fifth largest ICT provider in the world; they had 
recently signed contracts with both Glasgow City Council and City of Edinburgh Council 
and were therefore fully committed to the public sector.  

4.3 The Chairman, referring to the paragraph 7.3(b) of the Minute of the meeting of 15 
January 2018, requested an update on the possible amendment to the Scheme of 
Administration to include Live Borders within the monitoring role of the Major Contracts 
Governance Group.  He suggested that an action tracker be circulated for future meetings 
and this was agreed.    

DECISION:
(a) NOTED:

(i) the final assurance reports issued in the period from 23  
December 2017 to 23 February 2018 associated with delivery of the 
approved Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017/18; 

(ii) the Internal Audit consultancy and other work undertaken in this 
period; and

(iii) the assurance provided on internal controls and governance 
arrangements in place for the areas covered by this Internal Audit 
work.

(b) AGREED:
(i) to request the Chief Executive consider a possible amendment to the 

Scheme of Administration to include CGI within the monitoring role of 
the Major Contracts Governance Group and following this 
consultation a report be submitted to Council to approve this 
amendment; and

(ii) that future meetings, considering Audit business, to include  
an action tracker, for information.   

5. SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR 2017/18 
There had been circulated copies of a report by Audit Scotland providing an overview of 
the planned scope and timing of the external audit of Scottish Borders Council which was 
carried out in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing Code of Audit 
Practice and other relevant guidance.  The Plan identified Audit Scotland’s work to 
provide an opinion on the financial statements and related matters and met the wider 
scope requirements of public sector audit, including the new approach to Best Value.    
The wider scope of public audit contributed to conclusions on the appropriateness, 
effectiveness and impact of corporate governance, performance management 
arrangements and financial sustainability.  Ms Woolman, Audit Scotland, explained that a 
number of risks to the Council had been identified and that these had been categorised 
into either financial or wider dimension risks along with the planned audit work for each 
and were detailed in the report.  Ms Woolman went on to summarise the 2017/18 audit 
outputs, materiality values and referred to the financial statements timetable which took 
account of submission requirements and planned Audit and Scrutiny Committee dates.  
Ms Woolman advised that the review of Internal Audit had concluded that the Internal 
Audit function operated in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and 

Page 5



had sound documentation standards and reporting procedures in place.  Ms Woolman 
highlighted that their planned work for Scottish Borders Council this year would focus on 
the Council’s arrangements for demonstrating Best Value in Performance, Outcomes and 
Improvement. The results of this would be reported in the Annual Audit Report.   Mr 
Haseeb answered a question regarding Audit Scotland’s fee of £270,170, explaining that 
this equated to 350 to 400 working days per annum. The Chairman thanked Ms Woolman 
for the input from and advice given on behalf of Audit Scotland

 
DECISION
NOTED the report.  

6. SCOTTISH BORDERS PENSION FUND EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR 2017/18 
There had been circulated copies of a report by Audit Scotland providing an overview of 
the planned scope and timing of the external audit of Scottish Borders Pension Fund 
which was carried out in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing Code of 
Audit Practice and other relevant guidance.  The Plan identified Audit Scotland’s work to 
provide an opinion on the financial statements and related matters and met the wider 
scope requirements of public sector audit.  The wider scope of public audit contributed to 
conclusions on the appropriateness, effectiveness and impact of corporate governance, 
performance management arrangements and financial sustainability.   Ms Woolman 
explained that a number of risks to the Scottish Borders Pension Fund had been identified 
and that these had been categorised into either financial or wider dimension risks along 
with the planned audit work for each and were detailed in the report.  Ms Woolman went 
on to summarise the 2017/18 audit outputs and advised that the Audit Scotland fee for 
2017/18 in relation to the Scottish Borders Pension Fund was £19,990 whilst noting that a 
supplementary fee could be added as detailed in paragraph 8 of the report.  Materiality 
values and a financial statements timetable were detailed in the report, which took 
account of Audit and Scrutiny Committee dates.  Mr Robertson answered questions 
relating to the Pension Fund and advised that the final triannual actuarial valuation was 
awaited; however, the draft valuation was favourable reporting that the Scottish Borders 
Pension Fund was 114% funded and that contribution rates should remain at 18%.   The 
Chairman thanked Ms Woolman for the input from and advice given on behalf of Audit 
Scotland.

DECISION
NOTED the report.

7. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 
There had been circulated copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk providing 
the Committee with the updated Internal Audit Charter for approval.  The Charter defined 
the terms of reference for the Internal Audit function to carry out its role to enable the 
Chief Officer Audit and Risk to prepare an annual internal audit opinion on the adequacy 
of the Council’s overall control environment.   The definition of Internal Auditing within the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) was “Internal auditing is an independent, 
objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an 
organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes.”  In accordance with the PSIAS, the 
purpose, authority and responsibility of the Internal Audit activity must be formally defined 
in an Internal Audit Charter, consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of 
Ethics and the Standards. The Chief Officer Audit and Risk, as the Chief Audit Executive 
at Scottish Borders Council, must periodically review the Internal Audit Charter and 
present it to senior management (Corporate Management Team) and the board (Audit 
and Scrutiny Committee) for approval. The Internal Audit Charter was shown in Appendix 
1 to the report and had been updated by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk in conformance 
with the PSIAS for approval by the Audit and Scrutiny Committee to ensure that Internal 
Audit was tasked to carry out its role in accordance with best Corporate Governance 
practice. In response to questions, Ms Stacey advised that Internal Audit had access to all 

Page 6



records of the Council, Pension Fund, SB Cares and Integration Joint Board (IJB) as well 
as access to all financial information systems.  Internal Audit had recently carried out a 
review of Business World ERP system, developing process notes which had assisted with 
documenting system functionality.  Monthly meetings were also held with the Chief 
Financial Officer to discuss any potential financial risks.  
 
DECISION
AGREED the updated Internal Audit Charter as shown in Appendix 1 to the report 
attached to the agenda. 

8. INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY AND ANNUAL PLAN 2018/19 
There had been circulated a report by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk seeking approval to 
the proposed Internal Audit Strategy and Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 to enable the 
preparation of the annual opinions on the adequacy of the overall control environment for 
Scottish Borders Council, SB Cares, Scottish Borders Pension Fund, and Scottish 
Borders Health and Social Care Integration Joint Board.  Ms Stacey explained that the 
Internal Audit function followed the professional standards as set out in Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) effective 1 April 2013 (updated 2017) which required the 
establishment of risk based plans to determine the priorities of the Internal Audit activity 
and that these plans were sufficiently flexible to reflect the changing risks and priorities 
pertaining to each organisation.    The Internal Audit function also included the 
requirement to provide senior management and members with independent and objective 
assurance which was designed to add value and improve the organisation’s operation. In 
addition, the Chief Officer Audit and Risk was also required to prepare an Internal Audit 
annual opinion on the adequacy of the organisation’s overall control environment. The 
background to the Internal Audit Strategy was set out in Appendix 1 to the report.   Ms 
Stacey explained that the  Internal Audit Plan 2018/19, detailed in Appendix 2,  set out the 
range and breadth of audit areas and sufficient work within the audit programme of work 
to enable the Chief Officer Audit and Risk to prepare an Internal Audit annual opinion. Key 
components of the audit planning process included a clear understanding of the 
organisation’s functions, associated risks, and assurance framework. There were staff 
and other resources currently in place to achieve the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2018/19 
and to meet its objectives. The Committee discussed the report and Ms Stacey clarified 
that the Council had agreed to pilot the shared service of the Chief Officer Audit and Risk 
post with Midlothian Council for one year.  Following which the pilot would be evaluated 
and a report presented to Council to determine whether to continue with the shared 
service.  In terms of resource, she advised that there had been a restructuring of the 
Council’s Internal Audit team and the appointment of a Principal Internal Auditor.   

DECISION
AGREED 
(a)  the Internal Audit Strategy as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report; and 

(b) the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2018/19 detailed in Appendix 2 to the report. 

The meeting concluded at 12.30 pm.  

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Appendix A

Audit and Scrutiny Committee Members self-assessment 19 March 2018 – Appendix A

Local government financial overview 2016/17
Supplement 1 Scrutiny tool for Councillors

This scrutiny tool captures a number of potential questions for councillors and relates to our report Local government in Scotland 
Financial overview 2016/17. 

It is designed to provide councillors with examples of questions they may wish to consider to help them better understand their council's 
financial position and to scrutinise financial performance.

How well informed am I?

Questions for councillors to consider What do I know?
Do I need to ask further 

questions?
Budget setting (paragraphs 65–68 and 76–80) 
1. Does your council have a medium term financial strategy 

aligned with corporate objectives?
Yes; presented in papers for Special 
Council 20 February 2018

Gaps in understanding - briefing 
would assist

2. How does annual budget setting link to medium term 
financial planning?

5-year revenue financial plan and 10-year 
capital financial plan

Need greater explanation as new 
members have not been through full 
cycle

3. How is your council preparing for any further real terms 
reduction in Scottish Government funding?

Special Council 20 February 2018 papers - 
financial planning assumptions

4. If your council plans to raise council tax do you know how 
much it will raise? How will you communicate and explain 
the reasons for the rise to constituents?

Yes. Will refer to Budget statement and 
Council Tax leaflet issued to households.

5. What impact will savings have on the delivery of services? 
What are the potential risks?

Don't know about effect on delivery of 
services.
Financial Risk Register included within 
budget papers.

P
age 7

M
inute Item

 2

P
age 9

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2017/nr_171128_local_government_finance.pdf#page=40
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2017/nr_171128_local_government_finance.pdf#page=40
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2017/nr_171128_local_government_finance.pdf#page=40


Appendix A

Audit and Scrutiny Committee Members self-assessment 19 March 2018 – Appendix A

How well informed am I?

Questions for councillors to consider What do I know?
Do I need to ask further 

questions?
Financial and savings plans (paragraph 69–80 and 86) 
6. What is your council's financial position? What particular 

challenges does the council face?
Special Council 20 February 2018 papers - 
financial planning assumptions

7. Does your council have a savings plan? What are the 
options to close future funding gaps?

Corporate Transformation Programme 
presented at Special Council 20 February 
2018 alongside financial plans

8. What measures in the council's corporate and 
transformational plans are aimed at addressing the 
underlying demand for some services?

Aware of impact of demographics on 
financial and other plans though demand 
analysis not clear.
Reference in Corporate Plan.

Requires to be more explicit

Reserves (paragraphs 36-48) 
9. What is the council’s reserves policy? Special Council 20 February 2018 papers 

includes reserves statement; 50% risks 
covered by Reserves according to Financial 
Risk Register included within budget 
papers.

Gaps in understanding - briefing on 
Reserves nos. 9-13 by CFO would 
assist

10. What have reserves been used for in recent years? 
Supporting services and bridging the funding gap or 
transforming services? 

Emergencies - sometimes cash flow 
pending Bellwin Scheme claim

11. What are the different types of reserves your council 
holds? Do you know what these can be spent on?

Unallocated and allocated for specific 
purposes

12. What is the likely use of reserves for 2017/18? How does 
this compare to forecast funding gaps? 

Balancing spend over 2 years

13. What are the levels of reserves held by your council's 
IJB? Are these in line with the IJB’s reserve policy?

Don't know

P
age 8

P
age 10

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2017/nr_171128_local_government_finance.pdf#page=41


Appendix A

Audit and Scrutiny Committee Members self-assessment 19 March 2018 – Appendix A

How well informed am I?

Questions for councillors to consider What do I know?
Do I need to ask further 

questions?
Levels of debt and affordability (paragraphs 49–54) 
14. What share of your council's budget is taken up with 

interest payments and debt repayment? 
Set out in Treasury Management Strategy

15. What proportion of the council's debt is linked to inflation 
(ie, subject to indexation)? What does that mean for 
longer term affordability? 

Set out in Treasury Management Strategy

Budget outturn reports and management commentaries
16. Do budget monitoring reports clearly explain performance 

against plans and any changes to plans?
Yes; revenue and capital budget monitoring 
reports to Executive Committee

17. Do management commentaries clearly explain council 
performance and any changes to plans?

Not so clear from financial reports
Performance Monitoring reports and 
Corporate Transformation progress reports 
presented quarterly to Executive 
Committee. 

Financial scrutiny (paragraph 84) 
18. What additional training would you like to receive to 

develop your knowledge and skills in financial scrutiny?
Briefings on reports in advance;
Refresh required on TM for A&SC 
prior to consideration of next TM 
report

Charging for services (paragraphs 23–26) 
19. Does your council have a charging policy? Is this in line 

with corporate plans and objectives? When was this last 
reviewed?

Yes; Fees and Charges papers considered at 
Special Council 20 February 2018

20. What information do you need to be able to explain 
increases in fees and charges to your constituents?

Explanations provided within Fees and 
Charges report

P
age 9

P
age 11



Appendix A

Audit and Scrutiny Committee Members self-assessment 19 March 2018 – Appendix A

How well informed am I?

Questions for councillors to consider What do I know?
Do I need to ask further 

questions?
Exit packages (paragraph 40–42) 
21. Are staff severances in line with the council's workforce 

plan?
Don't know A&SC will rely on assurance work on 

Workforce Planning included in 
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2018/19

22. How does the council ensure that councils have the 
capacity to delivery transformational change?

Due diligence on corporate Transformation 
Programme; Corporate Transformation 
staff resources.

23. Do you know the implications of your council's pension 
liabilities of staff retiring early?

Information included within ERVS reports 
to Council

Capital programmes (paragraphs 31–33 and 65–66) 
24. How clearly does the council's capital programme link with 

the asset management plan and corporate objectives?
Note from the Internal Audit report on 
Capital Investment that strategic asset 
management plans for all asset classes are 
not yet in place.
Corporate Plan and Capital Financial Plan 
indicate links to corporate objectives and 
priorities.

25. Has non-delivery of the capital programme (ie, slippage) 
been significant at your council in recent years? Why?

Capital budget monitoring reports to 
Executive Committee provide explanations 
of slippage; acknowledge that the capital 
programme is ambitious; External Audit 
reports have highlighted level of slippage in 
previous years.

SUPPLEMENT 1

P
age 10

P
age 12

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2017/nr_171128_local_government_finance.pdf#page=33
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2017/nr_171128_local_government_finance.pdf#page=33
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2017/nr_171128_local_government_finance.pdf#page=33

	Agenda
	4 Minute.
	Minutes
	2 Matters Arising


